
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Development Authority Attorney Roger Murray


Approval of IPN USA's request for approval of a Tax Exempt Industrial Revenue Bond and use of the proceeds as specified by applicable 


tax code requirements.


IPN USA is a manufacturer of plastic components and packaging for the beverage industry that has a facility in Peachtree City.  IPN did a 


$25 million facility expansion in 2012 growing from about 30,000 square feet to nearly 100,000 square feet.  IPN has come to the Fayette 


County Development Authority requesting a new tax-exempt industrial revenue bond for approximately $10 million in new equipment.  As 


part of this, IPN will be selling the bond to a financial institution.  The tax-exempt status means that the buyer of the bond does not have 


to pay income tax on the interest received from the bond and, therefore, IPN pays a lower rate for its financing.  These types of bonds are 


primarily available only to small manufacturing companies.  Federal tax law limits the types of projects that may be funded with tax-


exempt bond proceeds since the interest earned on such bonds is exempt from federal taxation. 


 


Pursuant to the tax code, the issuance of the bonds by IPN requires the County's approval because the project is located within the 


territorial limits of the County and because the Fayette County Development Authority is the conduit Authority for the bond.  In order for 


the bonds to be excluded from the gross income of the owner of the bonds (i.e. tax exempt) the Board of Commissioners must approve 


the issuance of the bonds following a public hearing that will be held by the counsel for the Authority.


Approval of IPN USA's request for approval of a Tax Exempt Industrial Revenue Bond and use of the proceeds as specified by applicable 


tax code requirements.


These are private placement bonds with no public monies involved or committed.


No


No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


The Commissioner's approval of this action is not approval of the project for any other purpose and does not obligate the County or the 


taxpayers to any liability related to the bond in any respect.


ConsentThursday, September 26, 2013







1


Floyd Jones


From: Matt Forshee <mforshee@fayettega.org>


Sent: Monday, August 19, 2013 5:27 PM


To: Steve Brown Fowarding Address


Cc: Floyd Jones; Steve Rapson; Nathan Lee; Roger Murray; Randy Hayes


Subject: TEFRA Bond Approval


Chairman Brown -  
 
I wanted to give you a heads up that we are going to need to come before the BOC at the September 26 
meeting.  
 
IPN USA is a PTC manufacturer of plastic components and packaging for the beverage industry. You may 
recall that they did a $25M facility expansion last year, growing from about 30k sf to nearly 100k sf today.  
 
They have come before us requesting a new tax-exempt industrial revenue bond for about $10M in new 
equipment. As part of this, they will be selling the bond to a financial institution. The "Tax-exempt" status 
means that the buyer of the bond does not have to pay income tax on the interest received from the bond and 
therefore IPN pays a lower rate for their financing. These types of bonds are primarily available only to small 
manufacturing companies.  
 
Federal tax law limits the types of projects that may be funded with tax-exempt bond proceeds since the interest 
earned on such bonds is exempt from federal taxation. Pursuant to IRS Code, the issuance of the Bonds by IPN 
USA requires the County’s approval because the Project is located 
within the territorial limits of the County and because the FCDA is the conduit Authority for the bond. In order 
for the interest on the Bonds to be excluded from the gross income of the owner of the Bonds (i.e. tax-exempt), 
an "applicable elected representative" of the government unit must approve the issuance of the Bonds. As such, 
the Fayette County Commission will need to vote to "approve the issuance of the bonds".  By law, the 
Commission’s approval of the issuance of the Bonds and the use of the proceeds serves to meet the applicable 
IRS Code requirements. The Commission’s approval of this action is not approval of the Project for any other 
purpose and the Commission is not liable for any fiduciary responsibility as these are private placement bonds 
with no public monies involved or committed.  
 
Staff and bond attorneys will be present that night to present the project to the Commission.  
 
Just to recap, In order for IPN to be able to sell tax-exempt bonds for project finance purposes, the Commission 
has to vote to "approve the issuance of the bonds". Essentially, the IRS requires that you rubber stamp this just 
because you are an elected body. If the Commission were to vote no or otherwise not "approve the issuance of 
the bond", then IPN USA would not be able to proceed with this type of low-cost financing.  
 
I'm going to ask that our attorney, Mr. Nathan Lee with the firm Glover and Davis, get with the County Clerk, 
Floyd Jones, to see what steps need to be taken to place this item on the September 26th agenda and to provide 
any necessary background information for the Commissioners.  
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  
 
Thank you 
 







2


Matt 
 
 


 


Matt Forshee 
President/CEO 
Fayette County Development Authority 
200 Courthouse Sq 
Fayetteville, GA 30214 
P   |   770.461.5253 
F   |   770.460.0259 


    
E   |  mforshee@fayettega.org 
W  |  www.fayettega.org 
Fb |  www.facebook.com/FayetteGA 
T   |  www.twitter.com/fcda 
 
 
 







 


 


REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER REGARDING PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 


The undersigned, Matt Forshee, duly appointed hearing officer, HEREBY 
CERTIFIES, as follows: 
 


(1) A public hearing (the “Hearing”) was duly called and held on September 
19, 2013 at noon at the office of the Fayette County Development Authority (the 
“Authority”), which is located at 200 Courthouse Square in Fayetteville, Georgia.  The 
Hearing was open to the public.  The time of the Hearing and the room in which the 
Hearing was held provided a reasonable opportunity for persons of differing views to 
appear and be heard.  Attached as Exhibit A is a list of the people that attended the 
Hearing. 


 
(2) Notice of the Hearing (the “Notice”) was published at least 14 days prior 


to the date the hearing was held in the Fayette DailyCounty News, a newspaper having 
general circulation in Fayette County, Georgia, a political subdivision of the State of 
Georgia (the “County”).  A copy of the publisher’s affidavit with respect to the Notice is 
attached hereto as Exhibit B. 


 
(3) The undersigned hereby recommends that the Fayette County Board of 


Commissioners, the elected legislative body of the County, approve the issuance of the 
Bonds and the Plan of Finance referred to in the Notice. 


 
(4) The Bonds will not be obligations of the State of Georgia, the County or 


any other political subdivision or municipality of said State, and no tax revenues or other 
revenues of the State of Georgia, the County or any other political subdivision or 
municipality of said State will be used to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds.  
The Bonds will be limited obligations of the Authority, payable solely from the moneys 
pledged therefor. 


 
GIVEN under my hand, this 19th day of September, 2013. 


 
 
 


  
Hearing Officer 


 
Exhibit A: List of Attendees 
Exhibit B: Publisher’s Affidavit 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Red-Lined Version







 


 


EXHIBIT A 
 
 


LIST OF ATTENDEES 
 
 
 
 







 


 


EXHIBIT B 
 
 


PUBLISHER’S AFFIDAVIT 
 
 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 
 


The undersigned does hereby certify that he/she is a representative of the Fayette 
DailyCounty News, a newspaper of general circulation published in Fayette County, and that the 
attached notice appeared on the date indicated. 
 
 
 


  
Publisher 


 
Sworn to and subscribed 
before me this ______ day 
of September, 2013. 
 
 
 
  (Attach Clipping) 
Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires:__________________ 
 
(Notary Seal) 
 







 


 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED PLAN OF FINANCE 
 
 


NOTICE is hereby given that, pursuant to the provisions of Section 147(f) of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, a public hearing will be held at noon on September 
19, 2013, at the office of the Fayette County Development Authority (the “Authority”), which is 
located at 200 Courthouse Square in Fayetteville, Georgia, concerning the proposed issuance by 
the Authority of up to $10,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of its revenue bonds from time 
to time and in one or more series (the “Bonds”) to finance the equipment referred to below (the 
“Plan of Finance”). 
 


The proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds will be used by the Authority to 
(a) acquire manufacturing and related equipment (the “Equipment”) that will be leased to IPN 
USA Corporation, a Georgia corporation (the “Company”) and (b) pay the costs of issuing the 
Bonds.  The Equipment will be used by the Company at a plastic container manufacturing 
facility located at 700 Dividend Drive, Peachtree City, Georgia. 
 


The Authority will own the Equipment; however, the Equipment will be leased to 
and operated by the Company.   
 


All interested persons having views on the proposed issuance of the Bonds, the 
Plan of Finance or the nature or location of the Equipment being financed may appear and be 
heard at said hearing. 


 
The Bonds will not be obligations of the State of Georgia, Fayette County, 


Georgia (the “County”) or any other political subdivision or municipality of said State, and no 
tax revenues or other revenues of the State of Georgia, the County or any other political 
subdivision or municipality of said State will be used to pay the principal of or interest on the 
Bonds.  The Bonds will be limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from the moneys 
received from the Company and pledged to the payment of the Bonds. 
 
 
 


By: /s/ Matt Forshee  
Hearing Officer 







 


 


RESOLUTION OF FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGARDING THE ISSUANCE OF THE FAYETTE COUNTY 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BONDS 
FROM TIME TO TIME FOR THE BENEFIT OF IPN USA CORPORATION 


 
 


WHEREAS, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners (the “Board of 
Commissioners”) is the elected legislative body charged with managing the affairs and finances, 
and having jurisdiction over, Fayette County, Georgia, a political subdivision of the State of 
Georgia (the “County”); and 
 


WHEREAS, the Fayette County Development Authority (the “Authority”) 
proposes issuing up to $10,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of its revenue bonds from time 
to time and in one or more series (the “Bonds”) in order to finance the acquisition of certain 
manufacturing and related equipment referred to below (the “Plan of Finance”); and 
 


WHEREAS, the Authority recommends and has requested that the Board of 
Commissioners approve the issuance of the Bonds and the Plan of Finance to the extent required 
by Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 


1. The issuance of the Bonds by the Authority in an aggregate principal 
amount not to exceed $10,000,000 from time to time and in one or more series and the Plan of 
Finance are hereby approved to the extent required by Section 147(f) of the Code. 
 


(a) The proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds will be used by the 
Authority to (a) acquire manufacturing and related equipment (the “Equipment”) that will 
be leased to IPN USA Corporation, a Georgia corporation (the “Company”) and (b) pay 
the costs of issuing the Bonds.  The Equipment will be used by the Company at a plastic 
container manufacturing facility located at 700 Dividend Drive, Peachtree City, Georgia. 


 
(b) The Authority will own the Equipment; however, the Equipment will be 


leased to and operated by the Company. 
 


2. This approval is solely for the purpose of complying with the provisions of 
Section 147(f) of the Code.  Such approval does not constitute an endorsement to a prospective 
purchaser of the Bonds.  The Bonds will not be obligations of the State of Georgia, the County or 
any other political subdivision or municipality of said State, and no tax revenues or other 
revenues of the State of Georgia, the County or any other political subdivision or municipality of 
said State will be used to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds.  The Bonds will be 
limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from the moneys pledged therefor. 


 
 







 


2 


This 26th day of September, 2013. 
 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
(SEAL) 
 


By:  
Chairman, Board of Commissioners 


 
Attest: 
 
 
 
By:  


Clerk, Board of Commissioners 







 


 


CLERK’S CERTIFICATE 
 
 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 
 


I, the undersigned Clerk to the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, as the 
elected legislative body charged with managing the affairs and finances, and having jurisdiction 
over, Fayette County, Georgia (the “County”) and keeper of the records and seal thereof, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing pages of typewritten matter constitute a true and correct 
copy of the Resolution adopted by the County in a meeting duly called and assembled on 
September 26, 2013, which meeting was open to the public and at which a quorum was 
presentingpresent and acting throughout, the original of which Resolution has been duly 
recorded in the Minute Book of the County which is in my custody and control. 
 


WITNESS my official hand and seal of the County, this 26th day of September, 
2013. 
 
 
 
 


  
Clerk 


 
 
(SEAL) 


 
 







 


 


Document comparison by Workshare Compare on Monday, August 26, 2013 
9:01:47 AM 


Input: 


Document 1 ID 
file://\\MBF-
DC01\data\WDDOCS\1366\~VER\1\00057393.DOC  


Description 00057393  


Document 2 ID file://\\MBF-DC01\data\WDDOCS\1366\00057393.DOC  


Description 00057393  


Rendering set standard 


 


Legend: 


Insertion  


Deletion  


Moved from  


Moved to  


Style change  


Format change  


Moved deletion  


Inserted cell   


Deleted cell   


Moved cell  


Split/Merged cell  


Padding cell  


 


Statistics: 


 Count 


Insertions 3 


Deletions 3 


Moved from 0 


Moved to 0 


Style change 0 


Format changed 0 


Total changes 6 


 







 


 


REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER REGARDING PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 


The undersigned, Matt Forshee, duly appointed hearing officer, HEREBY 
CERTIFIES, as follows: 
 


(1) A public hearing (the “Hearing”) was duly called and held on 
September 19, 2013 at noon at the office of the Fayette County Development Authority 
(the “Authority”), which is located at 200 Courthouse Square in Fayetteville, Georgia.  
The Hearing was open to the public.  The time of the Hearing and the room in which the 
Hearing was held provided a reasonable opportunity for persons of differing views to 
appear and be heard.  Attached as Exhibit A is a list of the people that attended the 
Hearing. 


 
(2) Notice of the Hearing (the “Notice”) was published at least 14 days prior 


to the date the hearing was held in the Fayette County News, a newspaper having general 
circulation in Fayette County, Georgia, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia (the 
“County”).  A copy of the publisher’s affidavit with respect to the Notice is attached 
hereto as Exhibit B. 


 
(3) The undersigned hereby recommends that the Fayette County Board of 


Commissioners, the elected legislative body of the County, approve the issuance of the 
Bonds and the Plan of Finance referred to in the Notice. 


 
(4) The Bonds will not be obligations of the State of Georgia, the County or 


any other political subdivision or municipality of said State, and no tax revenues or other 
revenues of the State of Georgia, the County or any other political subdivision or 
municipality of said State will be used to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds.  
The Bonds will be limited obligations of the Authority, payable solely from the moneys 
pledged therefor. 


 
GIVEN under my hand, this 19th day of September, 2013. 


 
 
 


  
Hearing Officer 


 
Exhibit A: List of Attendees 
Exhibit B: Publisher’s Affidavit 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Final Version







 


 


EXHIBIT A 
 
 


LIST OF ATTENDEES 
 
 
 
 







 


 


EXHIBIT B 
 
 


PUBLISHER’S AFFIDAVIT 
 
 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 
 


The undersigned does hereby certify that he/she is a representative of the Fayette 
County News, a newspaper of general circulation published in Fayette County, and that the 
attached notice appeared on the date indicated. 
 
 
 


  
Publisher 


 
Sworn to and subscribed 
before me this ______ day 
of September, 2013. 
 
 
 
  (Attach Clipping) 
Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires:__________________ 
 
(Notary Seal) 
 







 


 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED PLAN OF FINANCE 
 
 


NOTICE is hereby given that, pursuant to the provisions of Section 147(f) of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, a public hearing will be held at noon on 
September 19, 2013, at the office of the Fayette County Development Authority (the 
“Authority”), which is located at 200 Courthouse Square in Fayetteville, Georgia, concerning the 
proposed issuance by the Authority of up to $10,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of its 
revenue bonds from time to time and in one or more series (the “Bonds”) to finance the 
equipment referred to below (the “Plan of Finance”). 
 


The proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds will be used by the Authority to 
(a) acquire manufacturing and related equipment (the “Equipment”) that will be leased to IPN 
USA Corporation, a Georgia corporation (the “Company”) and (b) pay the costs of issuing the 
Bonds.  The Equipment will be used by the Company at a plastic container manufacturing 
facility located at 700 Dividend Drive, Peachtree City, Georgia. 
 


The Authority will own the Equipment; however, the Equipment will be leased to 
and operated by the Company.   
 


All interested persons having views on the proposed issuance of the Bonds, the 
Plan of Finance or the nature or location of the Equipment being financed may appear and be 
heard at said hearing. 


 
The Bonds will not be obligations of the State of Georgia, Fayette County, 


Georgia (the “County”) or any other political subdivision or municipality of said State, and no 
tax revenues or other revenues of the State of Georgia, the County or any other political 
subdivision or municipality of said State will be used to pay the principal of or interest on the 
Bonds.  The Bonds will be limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from the moneys 
received from the Company and pledged to the payment of the Bonds. 
 
 
 


By: /s/ Matt Forshee  
Hearing Officer 







 


 


RESOLUTION OF FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGARDING THE ISSUANCE OF THE FAYETTE COUNTY 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BONDS 
FROM TIME TO TIME FOR THE BENEFIT OF IPN USA CORPORATION 


 
 


WHEREAS, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners (the “Board of 
Commissioners”) is the elected legislative body charged with managing the affairs and finances, 
and having jurisdiction over, Fayette County, Georgia, a political subdivision of the State of 
Georgia (the “County”); and 
 


WHEREAS, the Fayette County Development Authority (the “Authority”) 
proposes issuing up to $10,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of its revenue bonds from time 
to time and in one or more series (the “Bonds”) in order to finance the acquisition of certain 
manufacturing and related equipment referred to below (the “Plan of Finance”); and 
 


WHEREAS, the Authority recommends and has requested that the Board of 
Commissioners approve the issuance of the Bonds and the Plan of Finance to the extent required 
by Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 


1. The issuance of the Bonds by the Authority in an aggregate principal 
amount not to exceed $10,000,000 from time to time and in one or more series and the Plan of 
Finance are hereby approved to the extent required by Section 147(f) of the Code. 
 


(a) The proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds will be used by the 
Authority to (a) acquire manufacturing and related equipment (the “Equipment”) that will 
be leased to IPN USA Corporation, a Georgia corporation (the “Company”) and (b) pay 
the costs of issuing the Bonds.  The Equipment will be used by the Company at a plastic 
container manufacturing facility located at 700 Dividend Drive, Peachtree City, Georgia. 


 
(b) The Authority will own the Equipment; however, the Equipment will be 


leased to and operated by the Company. 
 


2. This approval is solely for the purpose of complying with the provisions of 
Section 147(f) of the Code.  Such approval does not constitute an endorsement to a prospective 
purchaser of the Bonds.  The Bonds will not be obligations of the State of Georgia, the County or 
any other political subdivision or municipality of said State, and no tax revenues or other 
revenues of the State of Georgia, the County or any other political subdivision or municipality of 
said State will be used to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds.  The Bonds will be 
limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from the moneys pledged therefor. 


 
 







 


2 


This 26th day of September, 2013. 
 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
(SEAL) 
 


By:  
Chairman, Board of Commissioners 


 
Attest: 
 
 
 
By:  


Clerk, Board of Commissioners 







 


 


CLERK’S CERTIFICATE 
 
 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 
 


I, the undersigned Clerk to the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, as the 
elected legislative body charged with managing the affairs and finances, and having jurisdiction 
over, Fayette County, Georgia (the “County”) and keeper of the records and seal thereof, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing pages of typewritten matter constitute a true and correct 
copy of the Resolution adopted by the County in a meeting duly called and assembled on 
September 26, 2013, which meeting was open to the public and at which a quorum was present 
and acting throughout, the original of which Resolution has been duly recorded in the Minute 
Book of the County which is in my custody and control. 
 


WITNESS my official hand and seal of the County, this 26th day of September, 
2013. 
 
 
 
 


  
Clerk 


 
 
(SEAL) 


 





		Development Authority- Tax Exempt Agenda Request File

		Development Authority- Tax Exempt Backup

		Development Authority- Tax Exempt Backup

		Development Authority- Tax Exempt Backup-1

		Development Authority- Tax Exempt Agenda Request Form



		Red-Line Documents

		Final Documents












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Finance Mary S Parrott


Approval of staff's recommendation for a final supplemental budget adjustment for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.


Georgia law requires a final balanced budget be adopted by County Governments for its governmental funds. Staff is recommending a 


supplemental budget adjustment for each fund and each department with a unfavorable variance between the current budget and actual 


expenditures. These supplemental budget adjustments must be approved by the Board of Commissioners and posted to the budget 


ledger before the accounting records can be closed and the auditors can begin their fieldwork for the fiscal year audit.  


 


 


Approval of staff's recommendation for a final supplemental budget adjustment for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.


Not Applicable.


Yes Annually


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, September 26, 2013

















































		Finance- Budget Adjustment Agenda Request File

		FY13 Summary Schedule Budget to Actual






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Distinguished Budget Award for Fayette County's annual budget document 


for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012 and ending June 30, 2013.


This is the sixteenth consecutive year Fayette County has received this award from the Government Finance Officers Association 


(GFOA). To qualify for the budget award, Fayette County had to satisfy nationally recognized guidelines for effective budget presentation. 


The guidelines are designed to assess how well Fayette County's budget document serves as a policy document, as a financial plan, as 


an operations guide, and as a communications device.  


 


GFOA is a  prestigious nonprofit professional association serving over 17,600 government professionals throughout North America.  It is 


considered the gatekeeper for monitoring and recommending improvements to government financial reporting and consistently influences 


changes in reporting standards that "raise the bar" for government entities.  


 


Acknowledge Fayette County's receipt of this award. 


Not Applicable.


Yes Last year


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, September 26, 2013





















		Finance- Budget Award Agenda Request File

		Finance- Budget Award Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Presentation of two Government Finance Officers Association Certificates of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for both  


Fayette County's and the Fayette County's Water System Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended 


June 30, 2012. 


This is the twentieth consecutive year Fayette County has received this award from the Government Finance Officers Association 


(GFOA). To achieve this recognition, an impartial panel of finance professionals examine the Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports 


(CAFR) and judge their compliance with the high standards set by GFOA. The reports must demonstrate full disclosure which clearly 


communicates the County's financial story.  


 


GFOA is a  prestigious nonprofit professional association serving over 17,600 government professionals throughout North America.  It is 


considered the gatekeeper for monitoring and recommending improvements to government financial reporting and consistently influences 


changes in reporting standards that "raise the bar" for government entities.  


 


Acknowledgment Fayette County's receipt of this award.


Not Applicable.


Yes Last year 


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, February 14, 2013





































		Finance- CAFR Award Agenda Request File

		Finance- CAFR Award Backup

		CAFR Award Back-Up County

		CAFR Award Back-Up Water System








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and Emergency Services David J. Scarbrough


Consideration of staff’s request to award the bid for Fire Station No. 3 construction to Ward General Contractors, Inc.  


Fayette County Purchasing Department solicited bids for the construction of a three bay fire station in Tyrone (Bid #886). Representatives 


of 26 companies attended a pre-bid conference held on July 26, 2013. Eleven bids were received by the opening date and time deadline.  


 


This recommendation includes site preparation, building construction, parking/paving, landscaping. Additionally, the alternatives for brick 


veneer and a standing seam metal roof will increase the useful life of this building and reduce the overall maintenance in future years.  


 


Including the two alternatives, Ward General Contractors, Inc. was the lowest of the bids submitted, has experience with the architectural 


firm for the project, and has completed fire station construction on similar projects for Gwinnett County Stations No. 7 & No. 28, Cobb 


County Station No. 14, and City of Decatur Station No. 2.   


Consideration of staff’s request to award the bid for Fire Station No. 3 construction to Ward General Contractors, Inc. in the amount of 


$1,802,000.00 and fund the project utilizing funding from Project #0550A in the amount of $1,425,769.40 and $400,000.00 from Project 


#2930C. 


Funding is available in Project #0550A and Project #2930C for this request.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


New BusinessThursday, September 26, 2013







 


 


 


To:  Steve Rapson 


From:  Ted L. Burgess 


Date:  September 9, 2013 


Subject: Bid #886 – Construction of Fire Station #3 in Tyrone 


Due to septic system and other issues, it is necessary to construct a new Fire Station #3.  The 
county has acquired land in Tyrone at the intersection of Highway 74 and Jenkins Road for the 
new facility.  In May, 2012 the Board of Commissioners approved The Howell Group, Inc. to be 
the architect for this project, at a price of $98,000 (RFP #817). 


The Purchasing Department, in conjunction with The Howell Group, released Invitation to Bid 
#886 on July 1, 2013 to acquire a contractor for construction of the new fire station.  Notices of 
the opportunity to bid were direct-mailed to 24 contractors.  Invitations were extended via the 
Fayette News, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace 
(www.glga.org), and Channel 23.  Notice was displayed for 30 days in the space provided at the 
front of the Commission Chamber, as required by O.C.G.A. 36-91-20 for public works 
construction projects. 


Representatives of 26 companies attended a pre-bid conference held on July 26, 2013.  Eleven 
of these companies submitted bids (please see attached).  Fire / EMS seeks to award a contract 
which includes the base bid, as well as alternate bids for a brick veneer exterior and a metal 
roof.  Ward General Contractors submitted the lowest cumulative bid for these items, at 
$1,802,000.  Fire / EMS recommends award to Ward General Contractors.  I support their 
recommendation upon Board approval of transferring the needed additional funds, as described 
in the County Agenda Request. 


Attachment 



http://www.glga.org/�





BASE BID
BRICK


VENEER
METAL
ROOF TOTAL


DIGITAL
MSG BOARD


1. AARENE CONTRACTING, LLC $1,717,941.00 $9,500.00 $105,000.00 $1,832,441.00 $32,000.00


2. C.P. RICHARDS CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. 1,957,000.00 15,000.00 70,000.00 2,042,000.00 27,000.00


3.
DIVERSIFIED CONSTRUCTION OF GEORGIA, 
INC. 1,934,000.00 20,400.00 55,000.00 2,009,400.00 11,000.00


4. HEADLEY CONSTRUCTION CORP. 1,777,000.00 19,000.00 95,000.00 1,891,000.00 28,000.00


5. JW THOMASON, INC. 2,299,000.00 39,000.00 20,000.00 2,358,000.00 30,000.00


6. LICHTY COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION, INC. 2,071,530.00 25,000.00 50,000.00 2,146,530.00 30,000.00


7. MEJA CONSTRUCTION, INC. 1,887,000.00 18,970.00 45,750.00 1,951,720.00 25,790.00


8. POND CONSTRUCTORS, INC.


$4,000,000.00
Minus $2,016,603.00


Net $1,983,397.00 13,663.15 73,910.50 2,070,970.65 15,680.25


9. SOUTHCORE CONSTRUCTION, INC. 2,149,000.00 19,856.00 65,463.00 2,234,319.00 24,806.00


10. WARD GENERAL CONTRACTORS, INC. 1,740,000.00 12,000.00 50,000.00 1,802,000.00 16,500.00


11. WBM. CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. 1,998,900.00 9,000.00 84,000.00 2,091,900.00 24,650.00


COMPANY NAME


BID NUMBER:    #886________ ______________


BID NAME: FIRE STATION #3 CONSTRUCTION_________


OPENING DATE:  2:00PM, THURSDAY, AUGUST 15, 2013________





		Fire and EMS- Bid 886 Agenda Request File

		Fire and EMS- Bid 886 Backup

		Bid 886 Fire Stn 3 - Purchasing Backup 1

		Bid 886 Fire Stn 3 - Purchasing Backup 2

		Sheet1










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and Emergency Services David J. Scarbrough


Presentation of a donation from “The Go Two Guys” to the Department of Fire and Emergency Services for the County's Alternative 
Teaching Methods Program.


The Fayette County Fire and Emergency Services Department utilizes alternative teaching methods to promote Fire Safety Education to 
all age groups within the community.  This program uses firefighters and other trained personnel who are dressed as clowns to gain the 
attention of the age groups and to relay the fire safety message.  
 
As the Alternative Teaching Methods Program expands, additional funding is needed for equipment and supplies.    "The Go Two Guys" 
has provided a $1,200.00 donation that will provide for smoke machines, wireless microphones, stage lighting, and costumes to aid in the 
presentation of the educational programs.  
 
“The Go Two Guys” is a company that allows persons in need of various household repairs and upkeep services to find qualified, honest, 
and trustworthy companies and individuals to perform these services.  All services are provided by off-duty firefighters that specialize in 
various trades.   


Presentation of a donation from “The Go Two Guys” to the Department of Fire and Emergency Services for the County's Alternative 
Teaching Methods Program.


Not applicable. A 2014 budget amendment is needed to increase revenues and expenditures for this $1,200 donation with no impact to 
fund balance. 


No


No No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, September 26, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Jeremy Busby, Georgia DOT


Presentation by the Georgia Department of Transportation concerning the department's project to widen McDonough Road.


The Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) is the in public comment phase of a proposed project to widen McDonough Road 


from State Route 54 to US 19/State Route 3; consisting of approximately 6 miles.   


 


This presentation to the Fayette County Board of Commissioners will be part of GDOT's outreach to stakeholders and constituents in the 


project area during this public comment period.   


Presentation by the Georgia Department of Transportation concerning the department's project to widen McDonough Road.  No action is 


requested or required.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, September 26, 2013







Proposed Widening Project: 


McDonough Road 
Fayette and Clayton Counties Fayette and Clayton Counties Fayette and Clayton Counties Fayette and Clayton Counties –––– PI 742870PI 742870PI 742870PI 742870


Jeremy Busby, Project ManagerJeremy Busby, Project ManagerJeremy Busby, Project ManagerJeremy Busby, Project Manager


Georgia DOTGeorgia DOTGeorgia DOTGeorgia DOT







Approximately 6 miles


McDonough Rd/SR 920 (temp) from SR 54 in Fayette to 


Tara Blvd./SR 3/US 19 in Clayton


Proposed McDonough Rd Widening







Why is this Project Proposed/Needed? 


1.  SAFETY


• Improve sight distances, eliminate                                     


blind curves. 


• Address this road’s high accident, fatality rates.


2. EASE CONGESTION 


• Provide additional capacity on this congested roadway. 


• Enhance pedestrian and vehicular traffic flow from 


surrounding neighborhoods.


Proposed McDonough Rd Widening







• Widen existing 2 lanes to  4 lanes (2 in each direction). 


• 20-foot wide raised concrete median.


• Bike lanes both directions and 5-foot sidewalks along 


each side.  


•   3 new traffic signals in addition to 3 existing signals.


• Replace bridges at Flint River and Hurricane Creek.


Proposed McDonough Rd Widening







FLINT RIVER BRIDGE


HURRICANE CREEK BRIDGE







Where are we in the decision-making process?  


• Utility relocations: 


• Gathering information regarding utility facilities on 


corridor.


• Right of Way determinations: 


• Changes in design reduced residential displacements 


from  50 to 8.


• No right of way acquisitions until 2016.


Proposed McDonough Rd Widening







Where are we in the decision-making 


process?  


• Environmental studies –


• 4F impacts to school, churches


• Impacts to stream at South Woods Drive.


• Impacts to Flint Woods Farm.


• Historical impacts to and mitigation of                             


Civil War cemetery and remnants near                        


Lovejoy Battlefield 


Proposed McDonough Rd Widening







• Public Involvement –


• Public Information Open House held July 11, 


2013 at Lovejoy High School. 


• In addition to standard outreach, we distributed 


3500 flyers to area homeowners, businesses and 


emailed Clayton, Fayette officials to announce 


PIOH.


• 199 attendees, 107 comments received and 


reviewed.


• Plans for another PIOH and public comment 


period late September/early October 2013.   


Proposed McDonough Rd Widening


Where are we in the decision-making process? 







Anticipated Next Steps:


• Next PIOH – September, October 2013. 


• Careful consideration of the public comments.  


• Responses to be prepared and distributed by GDOT. 


• Right of Way activities in 2016, 2017 (tentative). 


• Project to let, contract award. 


• Begin construction in 2019 (tentative)


• Information to residents, businesses in project area on 


any traffic interruptions related to construction. 


Proposed McDonough Rd Widening







Jeremy Busby, P.E., Project Manager


Georgia DOT


jbusby@dot.ga.gov


404-631-1154


www.dot.ga.gov


Thank you.





		GDOT- Agenda Request File

		GDOT- Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Information Systems Russell Prince


Approval of staff's recommendation to award the McDonough Road Fiber Optic Cabling Project to the low-bidder, ComTran, in an amount 


not to exceed $202,300.00, to authorize $43,000 in additional funding for the project, and to authorize the County Manager to sign the 


contract and related documents. 


The Information Systems Department solicited bids for the previously approved McDonough Road Fiber Optic Cabling Project.  Four bids 


were received for the project.  The low-bidder, ComTran, came in at $202,300.00. 


 


The originally approved budget for this request was $180,000.00.  So far, approximately $20,000.00 has been spent or reserved for 


known future expenses (Mallett Consulting's estimated engineering fees will be about $16,750.00 and $3,260 on Fiber Option Cabling 


modules).   


 


In order to have sufficient funds to complete the McDonough Road Fiber Optic Cabling Project, staff is requesting an additional 


$43,000.00. This brings the total project cost to $202,300.00 which exceeds the $200,000.00 County Manager approval authority for a 


approved budgeted line item. 


Approval of staff's recommendation to award the McDonough Road Fiber Optic Cabling Project to the low-bidder, ComTran, in an amount 


not to exceed $202,300.00, to authorize $43,000 in additional funding for the project, and to authorize the County Manager to sign the 


contract and related documents. 


Funding for this project has been budgeted for in the McDonough Road Fiber Optic Cable Capital Project (37510535-542420-2535E). 


There are funds budgeted within the Information Technology Strategic Technology Plan to fund this request.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


Revised project cost exceeds $200,000.00 County Manager approval authority for a approved budgeted line item and requires Board of 


Commissioner approval.


ConsentThursday, September 26, 2013







 
 
To:  Steve Rapson 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  September 18, 2013 
 
Subject: Contract for Installation of Fiber Optic Cable 
 
County operations on McDonough Road include Water System administration, Public Works, Building 
and Grounds Maintenance, and the E 9-1-1 Command Center.  These operations rely on a number of 
computer software programs, such as Munis, Kronos, GCIC, and other applications.   Currently, the 
county has a contract with AT&T for their “Metro Ethernet” service, which provides a line connecting 
the McDonough Road facilities, through the Justice Center, to computer operations at Stonewall 
Avenue.  The contract sets the price of $2,362 per month for the service. 
 
The Information System (I.S.) Department’s Fiscal Year 2012 budget included a Capital Improvement 
Project (#2535E) of $180,000.  The purpose of the project is to replace the AT&T line with a county-
owned fiber optic cable.  The new cable would increase bandwidth from 100 megabits to 10 gigabits, 
allowing improved response in general, and facilitating the use of the E 9-1-1 Command Center as a 
remote data backup site. 
 
The I.S. Department reports that the current estimated cost of the cable, if the recommended 
installation contractor is approved, would be: 
 
 Cable installation $202,300 


Engineering fees     16,750 
Cable modules        3,260 


      Total Cost  $222,310 
 
At the current Metro Ethernet contract price, the county-owned fiber optic line would pay for itself in 
7.8 years. 
 
Mallett Consulting, Inc. released an Invitation to Bid for the fiber optic cable installation.  Ten 
contractors requested and received plans.  Four of the plan holders submitted bids at the bid opening 
on July 23, 2013.  The bids were as follows: 
 
 ComTran Group, Inc. $202,300.00 
 ComTrac Services, Inc.   217,453.00 


FiberTech    219,483.20 
Graycliff Enterprises   302,700.00 







 
The I.S. Department recommends the low bidder, Com Tran.  Mallett Consulting check their 
references, which all reported satisfactory performance.  The Purchasing Department supports the I.S. 
recommendation. 











FIBER OPTIC CABLING


FROM JUSTICE CTR TO 911 CTR


FOR FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA


BID TABULATION


BID DATE:  JULY 23, 2013


EST. UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL


ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE


1 All Labor, Materials & Equipment for


Outside Plant Conduit, Fiber Optic Cable, 


Including Directional Boring, Bore & Jack, Complete 1 L.S. L.S. 176,680.00$       L.S. 196,549.00$       L.S. 193,343.92$     L.S. 280,000.00$    


2 All Labor, Materials & Equipment for Complete 


Termination, Hook-up & Testing of Fiber Optic


Cabling, Complete 1 L.S. L.S. 3,980.00$          L.S. 7,500.00$          L.S. 2,200.00$         L.S. 13,000.00$      


3 All Labor, Materials & Equipment for Installation


of Electrical Hand-Hole Junction Boxes, Complete


3a. Carson Industries, Model 1730-18 or Equal 4 Ea. 980.00$        3,920.00$          401.00$        1,604.00$          931.32$        3,725.28$         300.00$        1,200.00$        


3b. Carson Industries, Model 1017-12, or Equal 20 Ea. 636.00$        12,720.00$         340.00$        6,800.00$          760.70$        15,214.00$       175.00$        3,500.00$        


4 Allowance per Special Conditions 1 L.S. L.S. 5,000.00$          L.S. 5,000.00$          L.S. 5,000.00$         L.S. 5,000.00$        


TOTAL BASE BID 202,300.00$       217,453.00$       219,483.20$     302,700.00$    


A1. Additional Cost, Above Base Bid Price, 


To Substitute SDR 11 for the SDR 13.5 conduit 


Required in the Base Bid 1 L.S. L.S. 2,684.00$          L.S. 1,800.00$          L.S. 2,713.00$         L.S. 3,000.00$        


ADDITIONAL PLAN HOLDERS: GEORGIA UNDERGROUND No Bid


WMS UNDERGROUND No Bid 


METALS & MATERIALS ENGINEERS No Bid


ANIXTER No Bid


NETWORK CABLING INFRASTRUCTURES No Bid 


NEW WAVE FIBER CONSTRUCTION INC No Bid


GRAYCLIFF ENTERPRISESCOMTRAN COMTRAC FIBERTECH





























































		Information System- Fiber Optic Cabling Agenda Request File

		Information System- Fiber Optic Cabling Backup

		Fiber Optic Cable - Purchasing Backup

		Information System- Fiber Optic Cabling Backup

		Fiber Optic References

		12110 - Fiber Optic Cabling Justice to 911 Tally Sheet

		SHT-1-REV-1

		SHT-2-REV-1

		SHT-3-REV-1

		SHT-4-REV-1

		SHT-5-REV-1

		SHT-6-REV-1

		SHT-7-REV-1

		SHT-8-REV-1

		SHT-9-REV-1

		SHT-10-REV-1

		SHT-11-REV-1

		SHT-12-REV-1

		SHT-13-REV-1

		SHT-14-REV-1










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina


Discussion  of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance,  Article VI, Sec. 6-22. 


M-1 Light Industrial District and Sec. 6-23. M-2 Manufacturing and Heavy industrial District, regarding Building Height.  


On May 23, 2013, the BOC gave staff direction to research building height limitations in the various zoning districts.  To date, 


amendments regarding building height have been made to the G-B General Business Zoning District for movie studio sounds stages and 


to Article V. General Provisions for cathedral and vaulted ceilings associated with churches.  


 


Staff and the Planning Commission are recommencing that the building height limits in M-1 and M-2 be increased from 35 feet to 50 feet.


Direction from the BOC on whether to pursue the propose amendments to the Zoning Ordinance concerning build height limitations in the 


M-1 and M-2 zoning districts and Board authorization move to public hearings for eventual approval and adoption.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, May 23, 2013


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessThursday, September 26, 2013





























		Planning and Zoning- M-1 & M-...eight Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- M-1 & M-2 Building Height Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-12 amending the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia; to 


enact provisions pertaining to registration of vacant or foreclosed real property; to provide an effective date, to repeal conflicting 


ordinances; to provide for severability, to promote the public health, safety and welfare, and for other purposes.


In the last several years,  Fayette County has experienced a large number of foreclosures that sometimes result in properties being 


vacant and not maintained.  In many cases, it is difficult to determine who is the responsible property owner.  


 


On March 13, 2013, The Georgia Senate approved House Bill 110 in an attempt to standardize vacant and foreclosed property registries 


across the State of Georgia; resulting in a new code section O.C.G.A. § 44-14-14.   


 


This proposed ordinance in is compliance with O.C.G.A. § 44-14-14 per the County Attorney.  The ordinance will be administered by the 


Code Enforcement Section as designated by the County Administrator.   


 


Embodied in this proposed Ordinance is a registration, or administrative fee, where:  "Upon the submission of the registration required in 


Section 5-931 the owner of such vacant or foreclosed property, or the agent of such owner, shall pay the County an administrative fee 


which shall be established by the Board of Commissioners and which shall not exceed $100.00 per registration.  Said fee shall 


reasonably approximate the cost to the County of the establishment, maintenance, operation, and administration of the registry".


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-12 amending the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia; to enact 


provisions pertaining to registration of vacant or foreclosed real property; to provide an effective date, to repeal conflicting ordinances; to 


provide for severability, to promote the public health, safety and welfare, and for other purposes.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, September 26, 2013







 
 1 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


ORDINANCE 


NO. 2013-12 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO ENACT PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO REGISTRATION 


OF VACANT OR FORECLOSED REAL PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE 


DATE; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR 


SEVERABILITY; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE, 


AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF 


THE SAME THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT 


PERTAINS TO BUILDINGS AND GENERAL FEES (CHAPTER 5), BE AMENDED AS 


FOLLOWS: 


 


Section 1. By designating Sections 5-908 through 5-929 of Chapter 5 as “Reserved” and by 


creating a new Article XI, pertaining to “Registration of Vacant or Foreclosed 


Real Property”, in Chapter 5, to be numbered and read as follows: 


ARTICLE VIII. 


REGISTRATION OF VACANT OR FORECLOSED REAL PROPERTY 


Sec. 5-930. Definitions. 


(a) Agent shall mean an individual with a place of business in the State of Georgia at which 







 
 2 


he or she is authorized to accept inquiries, notices, and service of process on behalf of a vacant or 


foreclosed real property owner. 


(b) Foreclosed real property shall mean improved or unimproved real property for which a 


land disturbance permit has been issued by the County and is held pursuant to a judicial or non-


judicial foreclosure of a mortgage, deed of trust, security deed, deed to secure debt, or other 


security instrument securing a debt or obligation owed to a creditor or a deed in lieu of 


foreclosure in full or partial satisfaction of a debt or obligation owed to a creditor. 


(c) Street address shall mean the street or route address.  Such term shall not mean or include 


a post office box. 


(d) Vacant real property shall mean real property that: 


(1) Is intended for habitation, has not been lawfully inhabited for at least sixty (60) 


days, and has no evidence of utility usage within the past sixty (60) days; or 


(2) Is partially constructed or incomplete, without a valid building permit. 


 Such term shall not include a building or structure containing multiple units with 


common ownership that has at least one unit occupied with evidence of utility usage. 


 


Sec. 5-931. Registration. 


(a) Pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 44-14-14, there is hereby created in Fayette County a registry of 


vacant or foreclosed real properties located within the County, with the exception of territory 


located within the boundaries of any municipal corporation unless otherwise allowed by 


intergovernmental agreement between the County and said municipal corporation. 


(b) All vacant or foreclosed real property located within the area described in subsection (a) 


must be registered as provided in this section and article, except as provided in Section 5-932. 







 
 3 


(c) Each registrant shall file with the County Administrator or his/her designee, a registration 


form setting out the following information: 


(1) The real property owner’s name, street address, mailing address, phone number, 


facsimile number, and e-mail address; 


(2) If applicable, the agent’s name, street address, mailing address, phone number, 


facsimile number, and e-mail address; 


(3) The real property’s street address and tax parcel number; 


(4) The transfer date of the instrument conveying the real property to the owner; and 


(5) At such time as it becomes available, recording information, including deed book 


and page numbers, of the instrument conveying the real property to the owner. 


 


Sec. 5-932. Transfers. 


(a) When any real property is acquired by foreclosure under power of sale pursuant to 


O.C.G.A. § 44-14-160 or acquired pursuant to a deed in lieu of foreclosure, the transferee shall 


not be required to register such foreclosed real property pursuant to this article or pay any of the 


administrative fees provided for in Section 5-935 of this article where: 


(1) The deed under power of sale or deed in lieu of foreclosure contains the 


information specified in paragraphs (1) through (5) of subsection (c) of Section 5-


931; 


(2) The deed is filed with the clerk of superior court within sixty (60) days of the 


transfer; and 


(3) Proof of the following is provided to the County Administrator, or his/her 


designee: 







 
 4 


(i) A filing date stamp or a receipt showing payment of the applicable filing 


fees; and 


(ii) The entire deed under power of sale or entire deed in lieu of foreclosure. 


(b) Registration of vacant or foreclosed real property is not required within ninety (90) days 


of such real property’s transfer: 


(1) Pursuant to a deed under power of sale or deed in lieu of foreclosure; or 


(2) To the first subsequent transferee after the vacant real property has been acquired 


by foreclosure under power of sale pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 44-14-160 or acquired 


pursuant to a deed in lieu of foreclosure. 


Once the aforementioned ninety-day period has expired, registration of such vacant or foreclosed 


property must be made within thirty (30) days of said expiration. 


 


Sec. 5-933. Updating of information. 


 The owner of vacant or foreclosed real property registered with the County shall update 


the information specified in paragraphs (1) through (5) of subsection (c) of Section 5-931 within 


thirty (30) days after any change in such required information regardless of whether the 


information provided to the registry was in the deed under power of sale or deed in lieu of 


foreclosure. 


 


Sec. 5-934. Removal from registry. 


 The owner of vacant or foreclosed real property registered with the County, or the agent 


of such owner, may apply to remove such vacant or foreclosed real property from the registry at 


such time as the real property no longer constitutes vacant or foreclosed real property.  Such 







 
 5 


application shall be considered by the County Administrator or his/her designee, whose 


determination shall be issued within thirty (30) days of the receipt of said application.  If no such 


determination is made within thirty (30) days, the application shall be deemed granted. 


 


Sec. 5-935. Administrative fees. 


 Upon the submission of the registration required in Section 5-931, the owner of such 


vacant or foreclosed real property, or the agent of such owner, shall pay to the County an 


administrative fee which shall be established by the Board of Commissioners and which shall not 


exceed $100.00 per registration.  Said fee shall reasonably approximate the cost to the County of 


the establishment, maintenance, operation, and administration of the registry. 


 


Sec. 5-936. Violations. 


 Failure to register vacant or foreclosed real property or failure to update the information 


specified in paragraphs (1) through (5) of subsection (c) of Section 5-931 shall be punishable by 


a fine of up to $1,000.00. 


 


Sec. 5-937. Appeals. 


 Any vacant or foreclosed real property owner affected by this article may challenge any 


determination made by the County or its officials pursuant to this article by appealing said 


determination to the Magistrate Court of Fayette County.  Such appeal shall be filed with the 


Court no later than thirty (30) days after receipt of said determination. 


 


Section 2. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the 







 
 6 


Board of Commissioners for Fayette County. 


 


Section 3. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 


hereby repealed. 


 


Section 4. In any event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 


shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall 


in no manner affect other sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases of 


this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the section, 


subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional were not a part thereof.  The Board of Commissioners hereby 


declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this Ordinance if it had 


known that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 
 7 


 


SO ENACTED this ____ day of _________________, 2013. 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


 


By:_______________________ 


     Steve Brown, Chairman 


(SEAL)  


 


 


ATTEST:      


 


 


___________________________ 


Floyd Jones, County Clerk 


 


 


Approved as to form: 


 


___________________________ 


Interim County Attorney 





		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2013-12 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2013-12 Backup






MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners
September 12, 2013


 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on September 12, 2013 at 7:00 p.m.
in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Randy Ognio


Commissioner Absent: Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy Clerk
Dennis Davenport, Interim County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the September 12, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting to order at 7:04 p.m.


Commissioner Barlow introduced Pastor George Dillard, Senior Pastor of Peachtree City Christian Church, and
asked him to offer the Invocation.  Pastor Dillard then offered the invocation.


Commissioner Ognio led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Commissioner Barlow moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty being absent.


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of Fayette County couples celebrating their honored anniversaries.


Chairman Brown and the Board recognized the following couples and their honored anniversaries:


• Mr. and Mrs. Joseph S. Denise– 50th Wedding Anniversary.  A copy of Mr. and Mrs. Joseph S.
Denise’s recognition, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.







Minutes
September 12, 2013
Page Number 2


• Mr. and Mrs. Klaus and Mary Ellen Schoeffer– 51st Wedding Anniversary.  A copy of Mr. and Mrs.
Schoeffer’s recognition, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


• Mr. and Mrs. John and Anne Milani– 60th Wedding Anniversary.  A copy of Mr. and Mrs. Milani’s
recognition, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


• Mr. and Mrs. Gladwin and Jacqueline Kreimann– 60th Wedding Anniversary.  A copy of Mr. and
Mrs. Kreimann’s recognition, identified as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


• Mr. and Mrs. Chuck and Shirley Norviel– 65th Wedding Anniversary.  A copy of Mr. and Mrs.
Norviel’s recognition, identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


• Mr. and Mrs. Willard and Nina Divins– 66th Wedding Anniversary.  A copy of Mr. and Mrs. Divins
recognition, identified as “Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Copies of the request and master recognition which was read into the record by Chairman Brown, identified
as “Attachment 7", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


2. Recognition honoring Wellspring Living and its “Run for One” 5K run.


Commissioner Barlow read the recognition honoring Wellspring Living and its “Run for One” 5k run.  Copies
of the request and the recognition, identified as “Attachment 8", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


3. Proclamation recognizing September 17-23 as “Constitution Week in Fayette County.”


Commissioner Oddo read the proclamation recognizing September 17-23 as “Constitution Week in Fayette
County.”  Ms. Phyllis King, representing the Daughters of the American Revolution, spoke about the
importance of the Constitution and of its upcoming recognition ceremony at the Historic County Courthouse. 
Copies of the request and proclamation, identified as “Attachment 9", follow these minutes and are made
an official part hereof.


4. Proclamation of the 17th Annual Inman Farm Heritage Days event at Minter’s Farm.


Commissioner Oddo read the proclamation for the 17th Annual Inman Farm Heritage Days event at Minter’s
Farm.  Mr. Rick Minter briefly commented on the history and events at Inman Farm Heritage Days.  Copies
of the request and proclamation, identified as “Attachment 10", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.







Minutes
September 12, 2013
Page Number 3


5. Proclamation concerning the Fayette County Board of Education.


Chairman Steve Brown read the proclamation concerning the Fayette County Board of Education.  Copies
of the request and proclamation, identified as “Attachment 11", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


Chairman Brown’s Comments on Channel 23: Chairman Brown pointed out that graphics were playing on the
meeting room’s big screen and televisions, and he explained that they were the introduction to a “new thing that
we’ve decided to do.”  He told the audience that everybody likes to gather around high school football and, since the
County has made upgrades to its cable channel and is displaying Board meetings on the website, the County had
decided to record football games that could be replayed on the County’s television station. He said the program is
called the “Fayette County Game of the Week,” that Ms. Jan Horne has volunteered to record the games, and that
Chick-Fil-A Dwarf House in Fayetteville has covered all the costs; meaning no cost to the taxpayers.  He added that
the programing would include commentary from the coaches as well as a pre-game show.  He anticipated that the
programs would begin playing by next Wednesday, and that Whitewater High School, McIntosh High School and
Sandy Creek High School had already agreed to participate in this endeavor.  He encouraged everyone to tune in
and watch the games.


PUBLIC HEARING:


There was no Public Hearing.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Lori Klonoski: Mrs. Klonoski displayed three pictures to the Board and the audience utilizing the meeting room’s big
screen and televisions, and she said she wanted to speak about the Core Infrastructure Special Purpose Local
Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) referendum that will be voted on in November.  The pictures displayed erosion
problems in her yard due to stormwater runoff.  She explained that the stormwater runoff had created a ravine in her
yard that is 26 feet deep, 80 feet across at its widest point, and is 210 feet long– traversing most of her property line. 
She encouraged everyone to vote in favor of the SPLOST referendum this November.  She told everyone that she
has lived in Huntington South subdivision, in unincorporated Fayette County, since 1995, and that she knew they
were in trouble after the first big rainstorm.  She explained that stormwater drainage from higher ground channels
through a culvert beneath the road and is eroding away the land on both her lot and her next door neighbor’s
property.  She told the Board that, for many years, her husband contacted local county officials and researched
everything he could find to determine what recourse could be had for this issue; however, there were no solutions to
be found.  She also told the Board that her neighbor had also researched the problem and discussed it with the
County, but that he also got nowhere with his efforts.  Additionally, Mrs. Klonoski told the Board that her neighbors
have faced other issues with stormwater drainage such as an uprooted tree that fell and smashed a back deck.  She
stated that her neighbor has built a fence so that his grandchildren would not fall into the ravine, but that another
uprooted tree fell onto the fence.  She explained that her neighbor had paid $2,600.00 for a company to drop
boulders on the ravine wall along his yard.  Mrs. Klonoski told the Board that when her part of the subdivision was
built in 1983, there were no homes on the higher terrain even though there were plans to build on the higher ground. 
She said that it was known that there was going to be a problem with the two lowest lots because there was
inadequate planning for runoff from those homes to be built on higher ground, and that now the runoff from the
homes are channeled into her property,   She pointed out that the County engineer had approved the plat, and that
the County added a stamp that reads: Fayette County does not accept the ownership maintenance or responsibility


for any drainage easement or overall drainage plan, or the lack of one, indicated by this plat.  Mrs. Klonoski







Minutes
September 12, 2013
Page Number 4


interpreted the stamp as the County’s way to absolve itself from responsibility.  She acknowledged that when the
Stormwater Utility Fee was passed in 2012 that she hoped that the damage to her property would end because one
of the functions of the fee is to repair infrastructures that pose a threat to landowners and their property.  She told
the audience that the SPLOST referendum would save her home from destruction, and that she could recapture the
value of her home.  She reiterated that the ravine is huge and each rain is eroding more and more of her land as
most of her lot is sinking toward the ravine.  She understood that fixing the problems is expensive, and she
understood that the Board of Commissioners admitted that money has not been set aside over the years to cover
the costs.  She thought that the only way the County could make the improvements was with the SPLOST revenue,
and that the one-penny tax would bring enough money to improve the County’s most serious infrastructure
problems.  She told the audience that if the SPLOST referendum does not pass, then the Stormwater Utility Fees
would not come close to providing enough money to adequately deal with the most serious problems.  She closed
saying that at some point every community has to address the issue of an aging infrastructure, and that Fayette
County’s time has come.  Copies of the pictures provided by Mrs. Klonoski, identified as “Attachment 12", follow
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


Denise Ognio: Mrs. Ognio informed the audience that on Saturday, September 14, 2013, a seminar would be held
on “The Making of America.”  She said the seminar would be about the first settlers from England through the
signing of the United States Constitution, and that this seminar was in conjunction with Constitution Week.  She told
everyone that the Greater Fayette Republican Women’s Club was sponsoring the seminar, and that she had two
free tickets to attend.  She said they did not want any empty seats, and she asked for those who were interested in
attending to see her after the meeting.  She informed everyone that lunch would be provided, and that while the
seminar would last from 8:30 a.m. until 4:30 p.m., that the seminar, which is a historical study, was worth it. 
Chairman Brown announced that both he and Commissioner Barlow would attend the seminar.


Frank Gardner: Mr. Gardner replied to Mrs. Klonoski’s comments, and he said there are many places throughout
Fayette County that have been approved for building permits.  He said the county stamp stated: “The County is not


responsible for water damage or drainage and stuff.”  He said it seems logical to him that before plats are approved
they should be taken to the Planning Commission and addressed at that level.  He pointed out that in the future
there would be many acres that would be developed, and that the engineer and Fayette County should take
responsibility so that the builders would take care of the problem.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Barlow moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 6-10 as presented.  Commissioner Ognio seconded
the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty being absent.


6. Approval of staff’s request to sign the 2013 Performance Partnership Agreement between Fayette
County Emergency Management and Georgia Emergency Management Agency (GEMA), allowing for
an Emergency Preparedness Grant in the total amount of $65,394.00, with a 50% match from Fayette
County, and authorization for the Chairman and appropriate personnel to sign said agreement. 
Copies of the request and Partnership Agreement, identified as “Attachment 13", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.


7. Approval of staff’s request to apply for a Georgia Emergency Management Agency (GEMA) / Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Hazard Mitigation Grant, in the amount of $24,000, for the
purpose of revising and updating Fayette County’s Hazard Mitigation Plan, and authorization for the
Chairman and appropriate personnel to sign the grant application and related documents.  Copies of
the request and Hazard Mitigation Grant, identified as “Attachment 14", follow these minutes and
are made an official part hereof.







Minutes
September 12, 2013
Page Number 5


8. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to award an annual contract for waterline
extensions for Fiscal Year 2014 to the low bidder, Shockley Plumbing, in an amount not to exceed of
$500,000, and authorization for the Chairman to execute said contract and related documents. A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 15", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


9. Approval of staff’s recommendation to purchase a Fargo HD5000 Dual Sided ID Card System with
Dual Sided Lamination in an amount not to exceed $6,000, funded from contingency within the
capital projects fund.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 16", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


10. Approval of the August 29, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes and the September 5,
2013 Board of Commissioners Special Called Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


There were no Old Business items.


NEW BUSINESS:


There were no New Business items.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Noise Disturbance Permit: County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board that he had a request for an
exemption to the Fayette County Noise Ordinance, and he explained that currently the County’s Ordinance requires
Board approval for such exemptions.  He explained to the Board that the County had received a late request from
the Joseph Sams School that is hosting its 7th annual Southern Flair fund-raiser, and he reiterated that this request
would require the Board’s approval and the Chairman’s signature.  He also requested for the Board to direct the
County Attorney to amend the existing ordinance so that the Board or Commissioners or their designee, such as the
County Administrator or the Community Development Director, to make approvals or to come before the Board. 
Discussion followed.


Commissioner Ognio moved to authorize the Chairman to sign the Noise Disturbance Permit and to direct the
Interim County Attorney to modify the ordinance.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty being absent.  A copy of the Noise Disturbance
Permit, identified as “Attachment 17", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Environmental Protection Division Report: County Administrator Steve Rapson reminded the Board that he met
with the Environmental Protection Division (EPD) on Thursday, September 5, 2013.  He said the EPD had emailed
him, notifying him that they wanted to extend the response deadline from September 12, 2013 until September 27,
2013.  Mr. Rapson reported that he agreed to the EPD’s request.  Additionally, he reported that staff completed its
first round of interviews for the Engineer of Record for the Water System, that the next round of interviews would be
held on Friday, September 13, 2013, and that the plan was to bring a recommendation to the Board at the
September 26, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.







Minutes
September 12, 2013
Page Number 6


Update on the Deficiency Report: Mr. Rapson reminded the Board that at the last meeting he informed the Board
that the County had corrected about 25% of the listed deficiencies.  He then reported that the percentage had been
updated earlier in the day, and that the County has now corrected 38% of the deficiencies.  He informed the Board
that the report will be issued on September 27, 2013 when the County meets with the Environmental Protection
Division.  He stated that staff is actively going through the list and getting the deficiencies corrected as quickly as
possible.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Pending Litigation, Threatened Litigation, and Review of Executive Session Minutes: Interim County Attorney
Dennis Davenport informed the Board that he had two items for Executive Session.  He said one item involved
pending litigation and the other item involved threatened litigation.  He also added that the Board would need to
review the Executive Session Minutes from August 29, 2013 and September 5, 2013.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow thanked the couples who came to the meeting.  He thought it was
precious that Fayette County was recognizing people who have been married for a long time.  He mentioned that Mr.
Jim Richter and his wife should qualify.  Mr. Richter replied that he would have his recognition at another time.  He
also thanked everyone who comes to the meetings, and he especially thanked reporters Pat Cooper and John
Munford.  He quipped that it is always wonderful to read about how these meetings turn out.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo stated that when Chairman Brown mentioned that Commissioner
McCarty is “suffering on a cruise,” that he thought, considering the events of the past few months, that he may well
be suffering on a cruise.  He said it was his wish for Commissioner McCarty to be okay, that he hoped everything
was going great, and that he looked forward to seeing him back next time.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio said he looked forward to seeing the SPLOST question on the ballot,
and he hoped the citizens would dig into the issues and to determine what SPLOST is all about.  He mentioned that
many people do not know that the issue will be on the ballot, and he hoped that people would learn about it so they
could make a proper decision.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown pointed out that since the meetings have been able to be recorded, that people
could go to the County’s website and review all of the past meetings.  He explained that the September 5, 2013
meeting gives an explanation and history of the whole SPLOST issue, and that any documentation that anyone may
want with regard to the issues is able to be obtained from the Fayette County website.  He added that information is
also available at the public libraries and from the various County and municipal administration buildings throughout
Fayette County.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Pending Litigation, Threatened Litigation, and Review of Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved
to go into Executive Session for one pending litigation, one threatened litigation, and the approval of the August 29,
2013 Executive Session Minutes and the other being the September 5, 2013 Executive Session Minutes. 
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner
McCarty being absent.







Minutes
September 12, 2013
Page Number 7


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 7:54 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 8:06 p.m.


Return to Official Session and Approval of Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved to return
to Official Session and to authorize the Chairman to sign the Executive Session Affidavit.  Commissioner Barlow
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty being absent.


Approval of the August 29, 2013 Executive Session Minutes and the September 5, 2013 Executive Session
Minutes:  Chairman Brown moved to approve the Executive Session Minutes for August 29, 2013 and September 5,
2013.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with
Commissioner McCarty being absent.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 18",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


ADJOURNMENT:


Chairman Brown moved to adjourn the September 12, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner
Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty being
absent.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 26th day of September 2013.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-13 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. 


Zoning Ordinance (2010), as amended, specifically Article IX (Zoning Board of Appeals); to provide for severability; to repeal conflicting 


laws, ordinances, and resolutions; to provide an effective date; and for other purposes allowed by law.


On April 11, 2013,  Commissioners Oddo's and Ognio's requested the Planning Commission to review potential changes for variances for 


improved illegal lots and for the Planning Commission to work with the County Attorney to finalize and present recommendations to the 


Board of Commissioners at a later date. 


 


Both the Planning Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals have reviewed and are are in favor or the proposed amendments. 


 


On August 15, 2013, the Board of Commissioners instructed staff to move ahead with Public Hearings for approval and adoption of the 


proposed amendments.  Staff has advertised the recommended amendments, and is bringing the amendments to the Board for a final 


vote. 


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-13 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning 


Ordinance (2010), as amended, specifically Article IX (Zoning Board of Appeals); to provide for severability; to repeal conflicting laws, 


ordinances, and resolutions; to provide an effective date; and for other purposes allowed by law.


Not Applicable.


Yes August 15, 2013


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, September 26, 2013





























		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2013-13 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2013-13 Backup






AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners
September 26, 2013


 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Presentation of a donation from “The Go Two Guys” to the Department of
Fire and Emergency Services for the County’s Alternative Teaching
Methods Program.


2. Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association
Distinguished Budget Award for Fayette County’s annual budget document
for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012 and ending June 30, 2013.


3. Presentation of two Government Finance Officers Association Certificates
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for both Fayette
County’s and the Fayette County’s Water System Comprehensive Annual
Financial Reports (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.


4. Proclamation recognizing Promise Place and their 5k “Run From Domestic
Violence” Run.


5. Recognition of Fayette County’s residents who are celebrating milestone
Wedding Anniversaries.


PUBLIC HEARING:


6. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-13
amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning
Ordinance (2010), as amended, specifically Article IX (Zoning Board of
Appeals); to provide for severability; to repeal conflicting laws, ordinances,
and resolutions; to provide an effective date; and for other purposes
allowed by law.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


7. Approval of IPN USA’s request for approval of a Tax Exempt Industrial
Revenue Bond and use of the proceeds as specified by applicable tax
code requirements.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Dennis Davenport, Interim County


Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
September 26, 2013
Page Number 2


8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-19 relating to the issuance of a 2013 General
Obligation Bond for the purpose of advance refunding of the School Board’s 2005 and 2007 General
Obligation Bonds, an dot provide a present value of approximately $2,637,000.00 savings for the taxpayers
of Fayette County.


9. Approval of staff’s recommendation for a final supplemental budget adjustment for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013.


10.  Approval of staff’s recommendation to award the McDonough Road Fiber Optic Cabling Project to the low-
bidder, ComTran, in an amount not to exceed $202,300.00, to authorize $43,000.00 in additional funding for
the project, and to authorize the County Manager to sign the contract and related documents.


11. Approval of staff’s recommendation to approve requested changes to the list of streets identified for
resurfacing in the June 13, 2013 Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette County and the Town of
Tyrone.


12. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fairburn
for bridge improvements to Bohannon Road over Line Creek (Structure 121-5081-0), and authorization to
utilize $57,430.00 from the Road Department Asphalt and Tack (Accounting Line# 10040220-531171) if the
bridge improvements begin in Fiscal Year 2014.


13. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award a contract to Gullett Sanitation Services, Inc., in the amount of
$165,000, for dredging the two lagoons at Crosstown Water Treatment Plant, to establish a budget for this
purpose, to transfer funds from the Renewal and Extension account, and to authorize the Chairman to
execute said contract and related documents.


14. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to close McIntosh Lake, McIntosh Park, and the
access road to McIntosh Park from Friday, October 11, 2013 at 3:00 p.m. until Sunday, October 13, 2013 at
6:00 p.m. for the upcoming Great Georgia Airshow.


OLD BUSINESS:


15. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to enter into a revised Intergovernmental Agreement for the Use
and Distribution of Proceeds from the 2013 Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax for Capital Outlay
Projects.


16. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning
Ordinance, Article VI, Sec. 6-22. M-1 Light Industrial District and Sec. 6-23. M-2 Manufacturing and Heavy
Industrial District, regarding Building Height.


NEW BUSINESS:


17. Presentation by the Georgia Department of Transportation concerning the department’s project to widen
McDonough Road. 







Agenda
September 26, 2013
Page Number 3


18. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-12 amending the Code of Ordinances for
Fayette County, Georgia; to enact provisions pertaining to registration of vacant or foreclosed real property;
to provide an effective date, to repeal conflicting ordinances; to provide for severability, to promote the
public health, safety and welfare, and for other purposes.


19. Consideration of staff’s request to award the bid for Fire Station No. 3 construction to Ward General
Contractors, Incorporated.


20. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to award a contract to CH2M Hill to serve as Engineer of Record
for the Water System as specified in RFP #888, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, and with
provisions for two one-year renewals, and for the County Manager to execute said contract and related
documents.


21. Approval of the September 12, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.  Commissioner McCarty
was not present for this meeting.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Public Works Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fairburn for bridge improvements to 


Bohannon Road over Line Creek (Structure 121-5081-0), and authorization to utilize $57,430 from the Road Department Asphalt and 


Tack (Accounting Line #10040220-531171) if the bridge improvements begin in Fiscal Year 2014.


The City of Fairburn is in the process of replacing the existing bridge on Bohannon Road over Line Creek.  Under the proposed 


Intergovernmental Agreement, Fairburn will be responsible for all design/engineering, right-of-way,  and utility costs.  In addition, Fairburn 


will be responsible for all construction costs with the exception of hot mix asphalt construction.  Fayette County shall be responsible for 


the material, labor and equipment for installing the asphalt required for the project.  The paving work shall be done in accordance with 


applicable project and Georgia Department of Transportation specifications.  Fayette County shall also be responsible for support 


services (e.g., traffic control) associated with the paving work.   


 


The project is 1,105 feet long, of which 90 feet is bridge.  The bridge is completely in Fulton County (Fairburn City limits) and most of the 


road work is in Fayette County.   


 


A March 2013 construction cost estimate for the project was $611,202.00.  The estimated material cost to Fayette County is $57,430.  


Bridge improvements are scheduled to begin in Fiscal Year 2015 (FY2015), but there is a chance that the work will begin at the end of 


Fiscal Year 2014.  Staff is requesting authorization to utilize $57,430.00 from the Road Department Asphalt and Tack (Accounting Line 


#10040220-531171) if the bridge improvements begin in Fiscal Year 2014.


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fairburn for bridge improvements to 


Bohannon Road over Line Creek (Structure 121-5081-0), and authorization to utilize $57,430 from the Road Department Asphalt and 


Tack (Accounting Line #10040220-531171) if the bridge improvements begin in Fiscal Year 2014.


Funding of approximately $57,430 is required for materials plus indirect costs of labor and equipment.  Actual material cost will depend 


on Asphaltic Cement Price Index at time of work, which is anticipated in early FY 2015 but could occur at the end of FY2014.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


This is an example of Intergovernmental cooperation between Fayette County and the City of Fairburn for the betterment and safety of 


each jurisdiction's citizens.


ConsentThursday, September 26, 2013







( STATE OF GEORGIA	 PW 12-006 
( 
( COUNTY OF FULTON 
( 


INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 


BOHANNON ROAD OVER LINE CREEK
 
BRIDGE IMPROVEMENTS
 


This agreement made by and between City of Fairburn, Georgia, a subdivision of the State of 
Georgia (hereinafter referred to as "City of Fairburn") and Fayette County, Georgia, a subdivision 
of the State of Georgia (hereinafter referred to as "Fayette County"), each of whom has been duly 
authorized to enter this agreement, 


WITNESSETH: 


WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 9, Section 3, Paragraph 1 of the Constitution of the State of 
Georgia, City of Fairburn and Fayette County have the authority to contract with each other to 
provide for the design and construction of public facilities that will benefit both parties; and 


WHEREAS, City of Fairburn and Fayette County desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth 
the rights and responsibilities of the local governments with respect to right-of-way acquisition, 
utility relocations and construction of a replacement on BOHAl\JNON Road over Line Creek at and 
along the border between Fulton and Fayette County; and 


NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth 
herein, the sufficiency and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as 
follows: 


1.	 Description of Project - Project consists of replacing the existing bridge on BOHANNON Road 
over Line Creek in the City of Fairburn. The City of Fairburn Transportation Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) number is PW 12-006. 


2.	 Design Costs - The City of Fairburn has contracted with a design consultant firm to prepare 
construction plans for the bridge replacement. City of Fairburn shall be responsible for all 
engineering costs associated with the preparation of procurement documents necessary to 
construct the project. 


3.	 Right-of-Way Costs - City of Fairburn shall be responsible for all necessary costs associated 
with the acquisition of all rights-of-way and easements necessary to construct the bridge 
improvement within City ofFairbum.. 


4.	 Utility Relocations - City of Fairburn shall be responsible for all of the necessary cost of utility 
relocations associated with the project. 


5.	 Construction Cost - City of Fairburn will engage a construction contractor to build all of the 
improvements identified with the project with the exception of hot mix asphalt construction. 
Fayette County shall provide all materials, labor, and equipment necessary to install asphalt 
paving associated with the project, traditionally identified under Georgia Department of 







INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BOHANNON ROAD OVER LINE CREEK - BRIDGE IMPROVEMENTS 


PW12-006 


Transportation specification section 400 and in accordance with the plans and specifications 
provided by the City of Fairburn. Any and all support services, traffic control, quality assurance 
testing shall be provided by the party performing the work. 


6.	 Funding - In consideration of and with respect to the services to be provided by Fayette County, 
the two parties agree that both shall maintain records of the expenditures of all fimds and such 
records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures. City 
of Fairburn and Fayette County shall comply with all Federal, State and County regulations 
governing the use of any of the fimds provided by Fayette County for this project. 


7.	 Notices - All notices pursuant to this agreement shall be served as follows: 


As to Fayette County, Georgia: 


Chairman ofthe Fayette County Board of Commissioners
 
140 Stonewall Avenue West, Suite 100
 
Fayetteville, Georgia 30214
 


As to City ofFairburn, Georgia: 


Mayor
 
56 Malone St., SW
 
Fairburn, Georgia 30213
 


8.	 Term of Agreement - The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the date set forth above 
and shall terminate either 5 years from that date or at such time as the design and construction of 
the bridge improvement has been completed and fulfilled. 


9.	 Termination - This Agreement may be terminated by written agreement between City of 
Fairburn and the Fayette County, by the failure of a party to fulfill a material obligation, or by 
operation oflaw. 


10. Governing Law - This Agreement shall be governed in all respects as to validity, construction 
and performance by the laws of the State of Georgia. 


11. Entire Agreement - This Agreement incorporates and includes all prior negotiations, 
correspondence, agreements or understandings applicable to the matters contained herein, and 
the parties agree that there are no commitments, agreements or understandings concerning the 
subject matter of this Agreement that are not contained in this document. No other writings or 
oral agreements or conversations shall effect or modify any of the terms or obligations herein 
contained. This agreement is for the benefit of the parties hereto only and is not intended to 
benefit any third party, and no provisions contained within this agreement are intended to nor 
shall they in any way be construed to relieve any contractor performing service in connection 
with this Project of any liability or responsibility to perform the services in a safe and 
responsible manner or to complete the work in a good, substantial and workmanlike manner. 
No provision in this agreement is intended to nor shall it be construed to in any way waive 


Page 2 of3 







mTERGOVERNMENTALAGREEMENT 
BOHANNON ROAD OVER LmE CREEK - BRIDGE IMPROVEMENTS 


PW12-006 


immunities or protections provided to either City of Fairburn or to Fayette County by the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Georgia. 


12. Amendment - No variation or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in 
writing and executed by all parties. 


13. Severability - If any section of this Agreement is found to be void or invalid by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect the remaining terms of this Agreement, 
which shall continue in full force and effect. 


14. Counterparts - This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
agreement. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto acting through their duly authorized agents have 
caused this agreement to be signed and delivered on the date set forth below. 


This day of , 20_ 


ATTE~/l:;:;AIRBURN,GE;:~v-<~~r',H-_a_yo_r-----
City Clerk City of Fairbum 


APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


Ci~40- ~/L
 
City Attorney 


FAVETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


ATTEST: _ By: ----
(Seal) 
Clerk to the Commission 


APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


Director, Public Works Department Office ofCounty Attorney 


Page 3 of3 







State Roads
County And City
Roads
Other Roads


Major Rivers
Minor Rivers
City Limits


Parcels
µ 0 240 480


Fee t
1:4,800Fayette County





		Public Works - Fairburn IGA Bohannon Agenda Request File

		Public Works - Fairburn IGA Bohannon Back-Up

		Public Works - Fairburn IGA Bohannon Back-Up

		Bohannon Rd bridge








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-19 relating to the issuance of a 2013 General Obligation Bond for the 


purpose of advance refunding of the School Board's 2005 and 2007 General Obligation Bonds, and to provide a present value of 


approximately $2,637,000.00 savings for the taxpayers of Fayette County.


The Fayette County Board of Education is in the process of issuing a Series 2013 Bond in the principal amount of $53,005,000.  Issuance 


of this Series 2013 Bond will result in a present value of approximately $2,637,000 savings for the taxpayers of Fayette County.  


  


Proceeds from this issue will be to refund a portion of the Series 2005 and Series 2007 General Obligation Bonds and pay the issuance 


costs for the Series 2013. In order to issue the Series 2013 Bond, a resolution by the Board of Commissioners is required for the levy and 


collection of an annual tax to provide funds for the payment of principal and interest for the Series 2013 Bond.  


 


The resolution simply binds the Commission to levy the millage rate determined necessary by the Board of Education to pay the principal 


and interest of the refunding bonds.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-19 relating to the issuance of a 2013 General Obligation Bond for the 


purpose of advance refunding of the School Board's 2005 and 2007 General Obligation Bonds, and to provide a present value of 


approximately $2,637,000.00 savings for the taxpayers of Fayette County.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This request serves as an example of intergovernmental cooperation between the Fayette County Board of Commissioners and the 


Fayette County Board of Education in order to provide exceptional educational opportunities while saving taxpayers' money.


ConsentThursday, September 26, 2013

































		Administration- Board of Education Agenda Request File

		Administration- Board of Education Backup

		Finance- Board of Education Backup-1

		Finance- Board of Education Backup-2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Public Works Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's recommendation to approve requested changes to the list of streets identified for resurfacing in the June 13, 2013 


Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette County and the Town of Tyrone.


In June 2013, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the Town of Tyrone 


for the resurfacing of up to three miles of Tyrone streets per year.  Under the IGA, Fayette County provides the equipment and labor for 


the work and Tyrone pays for the materials and road preparation.  The IGA included an "Attachment A" that detailed an "initial priority list 


of streets" for Fiscal Years 2014, 2015, and 2016.   


 


Recently, the Town of Tyrone obtained State Aid, and as a result the town would like to change the streets they would like to have 


resurfaced this year. 


 


The revised Attachment A (attached) reflects the changes requested by the Town of Tyrone.  This revised attachment also adds 


language allowing for staff approval of similar street changes in the future.  The limit of three miles per year remains in place, unless 


authorized by the County Administrator.


Approval of staff's recommendation to approve requested changes to the list of streets identified for resurfacing in the June 13, 2013 


Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette County and the Town of Tyrone.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, June 13, 2013


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This is an example of continued cooperation between Fayette County and the Town of Tyrone for the betterment of safety of the citizens 


of each jurisdiction.


ConsentThursday, September 26, 2013







Attachment A 


 


SPECIAL STIPULATIONS 


PROJECT NUMBER T012345-TPW 


 


 


Each year the Town of Tyrone shall provide Fayette County with a list of streets to be resurfaced in that 


calendar year.  The list shall be provided to Fayette County as early as practical in the year and include 


the limits of road work, corresponding length for each street and cumulative length of all streets.  The 


aggregate length shall not exceed three (3) miles in any calendar year unless special provisions are made 


and approved by the County Manager and Town Manager.   


 


Provided below is a preliminary list of roads for the next three years.  The list may be modified at any 


time at the request of the Tyrone Town Manager with approval by the Fayette County Director of Public 


Works.   


 


CY 2013 


Brentwood Road (.1 mi) – Senoia Road 


Arrowood Road (.6) – Senoia Road and Palmetto Road 


 


CY 2014 


Castlewood Road (1.9 mi) – Senoia Road 


Berry Hill Lane (.3 mi) – Swanson Road 


Londonberry Court (.1 mi) – W. Crestwood Road 


Pyron Point (.1 mi) – W. Crestwood Road 


 


CY 2015 


Senoia Road (1.7 mi) – Castlewood Road North 


Berry Hill Lane (.3 mi) – Swanson Road 


Londonberry Court (.1 mi) – W. Crestwood Road 


Pyron Point (.1 mi) – W. Crestwood Road 


 


CY 2016 


Rockwood Road (.6 mi) – Senoia Road 


Handley Road (.4 mi) – Tyrone Road 


Winfair Drive (.4 mi) – Senoia Road  


Rosewood Avenue (.2 mi) – Senoia Road 


Laurel Circle (.3 mi) – Senoia Road 





		Public Works - Tyrone IGA Agenda Request File

		Public Works - Tyrone IGA Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of staff's recommendation to enter into a revised Intergovernmental Agreement for the Use and Distribution of Proceeds 


from the 2013 Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax for Capital Outlay Projects.


On September 5, 2013, Fayette County held a Special Called Meeting where it approved to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement 


for the Use and Distribution of Proceeds from the 2013 Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax for Capital Outlay Projects. 


 


On September 13, 2013, the Peachtree City Council, with a majority vote, approved an updated SPLOST list. 


 


Peachtree City's action does not change the ballot question, but it did change the Intergovernmental Agreement with the amended exhibit 


from Peachtree City.  It also, arguably, affects the County by expanding the approved projects for which funds will be disbursed. 


 


Please note that Peachtree City reduced its "street pavement" by $500,000.00, but that the city increased / added $500,000.00 for 


"transportation improvements". 


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into a revised Intergovernmental Agreement for the Use and Distribution of Proceeds from 


the 2013 Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax for Capital Outlay Projects.


Not Applicable.


Yes


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Fayette County held a Public Hearing on this Intergovernmental Agreement at the September 5, 2013 Special Called Meeting.  


Old BusinessThursday, September 26, 2013



























































fjones

Typewritten Text

Exhibits A and B











































fjones

Typewritten Text

Exhibit C







fjones

Typewritten Text

Exhibit D











Location/Item Need Cost approx.


 Bridges and Tunnels


113-5027-0 Peachtree Parkway 


over Lake Kedron BTW 


Peninsula and North Cove


2012 Inspection Fair Condition. Clean 


and Paint Piles. $76,000


113-5026-0  Flat Creek Road over 


Flat Creek


2012 Inspection. Fair Condition.  Clean 


and Paint Piles. Encase Piles #3 and #4 


at bents #2 and #3.  Repair Erosion 


around bents.  Clean reseal deck joints.  


Remove excess vegetation. Flat creek 


bridge railing replacement.  Design 


currently budgeted, Const not. $250,000


113-5064-0  Spear Road 


(Culverts)


2012 Inspection. Fair Condition.  Repair 


D/S scour. Repair 100%  section loss 


pipe areas (Some missing bottoms and 


large holes) and damaged ends. Repair 


parapet erosion and failing blocks.  


Remove excess vegetation. $130,000


113-5034-0 Smokerise Trace


2012 Inspection. Fair Condition.  Clean 


and paint piles.  Repair embankment 


erosion. $33,000


113-5035-0 Smokerise Trace


2012 Inspection. Fair Condition.  Clean 


and paint piles.  Clean and repair deck 


joints. $35,000


113-5046-0 McIntosh Trail at 


Lake Peachtree Dam


2012 Inspection. Good Condition.  


Clean and paint piles.  Clean and repair 


deck joints. $19,000


113-5038-0 TDK over RR


2012 Inspection.  Good condition.  


Clean and repair deck joints.  Western 


abutment strip seal is ripped and anchor 


plates loose.  Western approach slab has 


undermined and needs repair. $54,000


113-5060-0 Peachtree Parkway 


extension


2012 Inspection. Good Condition.  


Remove excess vegetation. $3,000


Misc. vehicular bridge 


maintenance


Repair to various vehicular bridges to 


include joint repair, pile repair, abutment 


repair etc. $500,000


Cart path Tunnel and Bridge 


Maintenance


Repair to various cart path bridges and 


tunnels to include but not limited to: 


railing repair/replacement, abutment 


repair, pile maintenance, tunnel repair,  


slope stabilization and armoring etc. $1,500,000


Total $2,600,000


Traffic


Street Paving


Paving of various roads in the City as 


determined by the most current 


condition assessment. To include but not 


limited to patching, overlay, full depth 


reclamation etc. $7,000,000


Cart Path 


Rehabilitation/widening 


The repair and maintenance of and 


estimated 5% of the cart path system per 


year based on the most current condition 


assessment.  To include but not limited 


to: patching, removal, widening, 


replacement etc.  $2,500,000


Cart Path Expansion


Design and installation of new cart path 


systems needed to connect separated 


sections of the cart path system.  $2,000,000


Transportation Improvements


The study and construction of 


transportation improvements to include 


movement upgrades, signal upgrades and 


other fiscal corridor upgrades (including 


new roads) which may be needed to 


improve the operational movements of 


traffic throughout the city. $500,000


Total $12,000,000


Grand total $14,600,000



fjones

Typewritten Text

Exhibit E







fjones

Typewritten Text

Exhibit F

























































		Commissioners- Intergovernmen...ement Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Intergovernmental Agreement Backup

		Commissioners- Intergovernmental Agreement Backup

		Commissioners- Intergovernmental Agreement Backup-1

		Exhibit A- Fayette County List

		Exhibit C- Town of Brooks List

		Exhibit D- City of Fayetteville List

		Exhibit E- City of Peachtree City List

		Exhibit F- Town of Tyrone List














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Steve Rapson


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to close McIntosh Lake, McIntosh Park, the access road to McIntosh Park from 


Friday October 11, 2013 at 3:00 p.m. until Sunday, October 13, 2013 at 6:00 p.m. for the upcoming Great Georgia Airshow.


Angie Faulise, Director of the Great Georgia Airshow, has requested that the County close McIntosh Lake, McIntosh Park and the access 


road to McIntosh Park due to their proximity to the Great Georgia Airshow and safety concerns with airplanes in the area. 


 


The Great Georgia Airshow is a not-for-profit venture to provide funding for the many community organizations that have been involved, 


and it supports the efforts of the Dixie Wing to restore and maintain its World War II vintage aircraft. 


 


Fayette County is delighted to host the Great Georgia Airshow and looks forward to working with the show and its Director.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to close McIntosh Lake, McIntosh Park, the access road to McIntosh Park from 


Friday October 11, 2013 at 3:00 p.m. until Sunday, October 13, 2013 at 6:00 p.m. for the upcoming Great Georgia Airshow.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


ConsentThursday, September 26, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Steve Brown


Proclamation recognizing Promise Place and their 5k "Run From Domestic Violence" Run.


Promise Place provides an undisclosed Emergency Shelter for victims of domestic violence and their children, and it is a place for victims 


to turn to for safety.  The organization offers an 24-hour Crisis Hotline, Emergency Domestic Violence Shelter, support groups, legal 


advocacy, a Teen Dating Violence Awareness Program, safety planning, children's programs and ongoing community education.  


 


Promise Place's 5k "Run from Domestic Violence" race is scheduled for Friday, October 4, 2013 at Drake Field, Peachtree City, GA from 


5:00 p.m. to 7:30 p.m.  All proceeds raised during the event will benefit Promise Place.


Proclamation recognizing Promise Place and their 5k "Run From Domestic Violence" Run.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Promise Place exists to prevent domestic violence through awareness programs, educational training and providing safe environments 


for the victims and their families, utilizing legal advocacy, emergency shelters and transitional housing.   


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, September 26, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Purchasing Ted Burgess


Approval of staff's recommendation to award a contract to Gullett Sanitation Services Inc. in the amount of $165,000.00 for dredging the 


two lagoons at Crosstown Water Treatment Plant, to establish a budget for this purpose, to transfer funds from the Renewal and 


Extension account, and to authorize the Chairman to execute said contract and related documents.


The two lagoons at the Crosstown Water Treatment Plant must occasionally be dredged in order to remove materials that collect there.  


The lagoons were last dredged about ten years ago, and it is time for them to be dredged again.  Request for Proposals #890 was 


released to seek a qualified contractor for this purpose.  Of the eighteen companies that attended the mandatory pre-proposal 


conference, five ultimately submitted proposals. 


 


An Evaluation Committee reviewed and scored the five proposals, based on criteria spelled out in the Request for Proposals.  Gullett 


Sanitation Services, Inc., received the best overall evaluation score, based on technical merit and price criteria that were spelled out in 


the Request for Proposals. 


 


The Evaluation Committee, and the Purchasing Department, recommend awarding the contract to Gullett Sanitation Services. 


 


Approval of staff's recommendation to award a contract to Gullett Sanitation Services Inc. in the amount of $165,000.00 for dredging the 


two lagoons at Crosstown Water Treatment Plant, to establish a budget for this purpose, to transfer funds from the Renewal and 


Extension account, and to authorize the Chairman to execute said contract and related documents.


Funds are available in the Renewal and Extension account to transfer to a budget to be established for this purpose.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


The original dredging contractor was projected to spend in excess of $500,000, based upon their early billing, and necessitated halting 


their contract and placing this Request For Proposal (RFP) on the street.  This contract was evaluated and scored (70% technical and 


30% price) with the best overall responsive bidder being recommended. 


ConsentThursday, September 26, 2013







 
 
To:  Steve Rapson 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  September 16, 2013 
 
Subject: RFP #890 – Dredge Lagoons at Crosstown Water Treatment Plant 
 
The Crosstown Water Treatment Plant uses two lagoons in the treatment process.  The lagoons, 
commonly referred to as the North Lagoon and the South Lagoon, must occasionally be dredged to 
remove accumulated matter.  The last time they were dredged was approximately 2002.  They need to 
be dredged again at this time. 
 
The Purchasing Department released Request for Proposals (RFP) #890 to seek a qualified contractor 
to dredge the two lagoons.  The Department direct-mailed notices to 18 qualified companies.  
Invitations were extended via the Fayette News, the county website, Georgia Local Government 
Access Marketplace (www.glga.org), and Channel 23.  An additional 75 vendors were notified through 
the Internet-based Georgia Procurement Registry. 
 
A mandatory pre-proposal conference was held on August 28, 2013.  A total of 18 firms attended.  By 
the bid-opening date of September 11, five companies had submitted bids. (Please see attachment).   
 
 The Evaluation Committee, representing the Water System and the Purchasing Department, scored 
the proposals using the evaluation criteria in the RFP.  The criteria included (1) demonstrated 
understanding of the project and its objectives, (2) proposed approach to address the need, (3) 
qualifications and expertise of the company and the proposed team, (4) relevant experience of the 
firm in performing similar work, and (5) price.   
 
All five responding companies appear to have the qualifications and experience needed to perform 
the work that is needed.  The Evaluation Committee recommends awarding the contract to Gullett 
Sanitation Services, Inc.  This award recommendation is based upon Gullett receiving the best overall 
score, resulting from the Evaluation Committee’s scoring of the technical merit and pricing as outlined 
in the Request for Proposals.  The proposal from the low bidder, Synagro, had issues such as 
questionable completion dates and disposal of materials. 
 
The Purchasing Department supports the Committee’s recommendation.  Approval will be needed to 
establish a budget for this purpose, and transfer funds from the Renewal and Extension (R&E) 
account. 
 
Attachment 



http://www.glga.org/�





MAX 
POINT


S
SYNAGRO 


SOUTH, LLC


GULLETT 
SANITATION 


SERVICES, 
INC.


BIO-NOMIC 
SERVICES, 


INC.


TERRA 
RENEWAL 
WEST LLC 


DBA DENALI 
WATER


MERRELL 
BROS, INC


A. TECHNICAL MERIT:


1 20 16.7 18.3 16.7 16.7 15.0


2 40 20.0 30.0 31.7 35.0 35.0


3 20 16.7 18.3 20.0 18.3 18.3


4 20 16.7 16.7 18.3 18.3 18.3


100 70.0 83.3 86.7 88.3 86.7


B. PRICE:
Price $115,500.00 $165,000.00 $297,826.00 $463,945.00 $467,730.04


100% 70% 39% 25% 25%


Technical Merit 70% 49.0 58.3 60.7 61.8 60.7
Price 30 30% 30.0 21.0 11.6 7.5 7.4


C. TOTAL SCORE 79.0 79.3 72.3 69.3 68.1


PROPOSAL #P890 DREDGING LAGOONS
EVALUATION SCORING SHEET


TECHNICAL MERIT TOTAL


EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEMBER: Evaluation Summary


Understanding of the project and its 
objectives.


Proposed approach to address the need.
Qualifications and expertise of the co. 
& the team proposed to do the work.
Relevant experience of the firm in 


performing similar work.





		Water System- Crosstown Dredging Agenda Request File

		Water System- Crosstown Dredging Backup

		RFP 890 Crosstown Dredging - Purchasing Backup 1

		RFP 890 Crosstown Dredging - Purchasing Backup 2

		Analysis










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Brown


Recognition of Fayette County's residents who are celebrating milestone Wedding Anniversaries.


Fayette County is please to honor the wedding anniversaries of married couple who have reached or exceeded their 50th wedding 


anniversary. 


 


Darrell and Teresa Newby-   50th wedding anniversary 


Claude and Janet Paquin-    50th wedding anniversary 


Jim and Lois Richter-            50th wedding anniversary 


Recognition of Fayette County's residents who are celebrating milestone Wedding Anniversaries.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This request is a continuation of the Board of Commissioners recognizing residents of Fayette County that have or are celebrating a 


milestone wedding anniversary.


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, September 26, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Purchasing Steven Rapson/Ted Burgess


Consideration of staff's recommendation to award a contract to CH2M Hill to serve as Engineer of Record for the Water System as 


specified in RFP #888, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 and with provisions for two one-year renewals, and for the County 


Manager to execute said contract and related documents.


Periodically, the need arises for specialized professional engineering services related to the treatment, storage, and distribution of water.  


To efficiently obtain these services on an as-needed basis, a common practice is to go through the competitive procurement process to 


contract with an Engineer of Record.  This allows the county to go through the process once, and to carefully select a qualified 


engineering firm with negotiated fees for services that will be ordered as needed.  It allows the Water System to respond to the needs of 


water customers or the requirements of regulators more rapidly than would be possible otherwise. 


 


The Purchasing Department issued Request for Proposals #888 to obtain an Engineer of Record for the current fiscal year. A mandatory 


pre-proposal conference was held on July 24, with a total of 24 firms attending.  Ultimately, by the bid-opening date of August 21, nine 


firms had responded.  An Evaluation Committee reviewed and scored the nine proposals, and shorted-listed those firms to three: 


Woodard & Curran, Mallett Consulting, and CH2M Hill.  The three short-listed firms made final presentations to the Evaluation Committee 


on September 12 and 13.  Based upon the firms' proposals, evaluation scores, references, and presentations, the Evaluation Committee 


unanimously recommends CH2M Hill for the Engineer of Record contract.


Approval of staff's recommendation to award a contract to CH2M Hill to serve as Engineer of Record for the Water System as specified in 


RFP #888, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 and with provisions for two one-year renewals, and for the County Manager to 


execute said contract and related documents.


Funds are budgeted in various accounts in the Water System's budget, depending on the specific projects assigned to the Engineer of 


Record.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


The County Manager and Attorney will work with CH2M Hill to develop a best and final fee and rate structure prior to the contract being 


executed. 


New BusinessThursday, September 26, 2013







 
 
 
To:  Steve Rapson 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  September 17, 2013 
 
Subject: RFP#888 – Water System Engineer of Record 
 
A requirement common to county and municipal water systems is the ongoing use of professional 
engineering services related to the treatment, storage, and distribution of water.  The need can arise 
at any time during the year.  A few recent examples for Fayette County include management of water 
line extensions; design and specifications for trash screens; surveys, permits, and environmental work 
for sediment removal; design, plans, and specifications for process (MIEX) upgrades; and design, 
inspection, mussel monitoring, and project management for Lake McIntosh. 
 
To go through a sealed bid or proposal process each time engineering services are needed would be 
cumbersome, and would delay work that impacts water quality or service.  It is therefore customary 
for local governments to contract with a firm to serve as the “on-call engineer” or Engineer of Record. 
 
The Purchasing Department released Request for Proposals (RFP) #888 to seek an Engineer of Record 
for a contract through June 30, 2014 with provisions for two 12-month extensions.  As noted in the 
RFP, the Engineer of Record could be asked to perform work that includes, but is not limited to, the 
following examples: 
 


• Assess existing water treatment infrastructure and equipment; recommend improvements 
• Assess current processes, procedures, and plant operations; recommend improvements 
• Develop a report to be used as the foundation for a capital improvement program 
• Conduct water quality studies 
• Provide modeling, data analysis, and data interpretation services 
• Conduct mapping or surveying as needed 
• Manage the county’s annual water line extension contract 
• Manage the Lake Peachtree dredging project 


 
The Department direct-mailed notices to 22 qualified companies already established as vendors with 
the county.  Invitations were extended via the Fayette News, the county website, Georgia Local 
Government Access Marketplace (www.glga.org), and Channel 23.  An additional 418 vendors were 
notified through the Internet-based Georgia Procurement Registry. 
 



http://www.glga.org/�





A mandatory pre-proposal conference was held on July 24.  A total of 24 firms attended.  By the bid-
opening date of August 21, nine companies had submitted bids.  Since the contract will specify that 
work is to be assigned on an as-needed basis, proposals do not include a lump sum cost.  Instead, they 
show hourly and other charges. 
 
The Evaluation Committee, representing administration from the county and two outside water 
systems, scored the proposals using the evaluation criteria in the RFP.  The criteria included (1) 
proposed approach to addressing the need, (2) relevant experience and qualifications of the firm, (3) 
qualifications and experience of proposed team members, (4) past performance and references, and 
(5) proposed fees.  Based on the aggregate scoring of the nine firms, the highest scoring three firms 
were short-listed, and made presentations on September 12 and 13.  After reviewing the results of the 
presentations, the Evaluation Committee unanimously determined that CH2M Hill was their choice for 
the Engineer of Record contract.  The Purchasing Department supports the recommendation. 
 
The cost of these services will ultimately depend on the number and complexity of projects the county 
assigns to the Engineer of Record.  Funds are budgeted in various accounts, depending on the nature 
of the expenditure. A final contract, which includes fees and rates, will be executed by the County 
Manager upon approval of the Board of Commissioners. 





		Water System- Engineer of Record Agenda Request File

		Water System- Engineer of Record Backup



